
  
 

 
 

 

Tuesday, September 12, 2017  
 

 

7:00 PM Council Regular Meeting 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Approval of Agenda……………………………………………………………………………………….…….…. p. 1-2  

5. Recognitions and Presentations 

 

6. Public Comments  

This portion of the meeting is to receive comments from the public on items not included in this agenda.  Citizens 
should sign up prior to the start of the meeting.  The Council is interested in hearing your concerns, but may take no 
action or deliberate on the subject matter at this time.  Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the 
appropriate town officials or staff and may be scheduled for a future agenda.  Each speaker limited to 3 minutes 
with a total of 15 minutes allotted for this purpose. 

 

7. Consent Agenda   

a. Approve minutes (Attachment #2a) .................................................................................. p. 3 - 17 

i. Council’s Regular meeting August 8, 2017  

ii. Council’s Work Session August 22, 2017 

b. Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports ........................................................................ p. 18 - 43   

c. Delinquent Tax List (Attachment #2c) ………………………………………………………………….………..p. 44 – 64 

d. Region 2000 Hazard Mitigation Plan (Attachment #2d)………………………………………..………..p. 65 

e.  Charlotte Drainage Project/7th Street Sidewalk Project Bid Award ……………………….……….p. 66 - 69 

f. New Prospect Baptist Church Request to Use English Park (5k Fundraiser) ………..…..……..p. 70 

 

8. Public Hearing      

a. Special Use Permit – 902 Main Street “Auto repair service, major” (Attachment #3)…p. 71 – 84 
 

 
 

 

Town of Altavista 
 

Town Council  
Regular Meeting Agenda 

J.R. “Rudy” Burgess Town Hall 

510 7th Street 

Altavista, VA  24517 



Town Council Meeting Agenda   Tuesday, September 12, 2017 
 

 

9. New/Unfinished Business (20 minutes) 

a. Ordinance Discussion (Junk, Debris, Trash, etc.) (Attachment #4) …………………...…..……..p. 85 - 94 

b. Planning Commission Recommendation (Schedule Public Hearing) (Attachment #5)…..p. 95 

c. WWTP Clarifier Replacement CIP Project Update (Attachment #6)……....................……..p. 96 

d. Property Maintenance Enforcement – No Interest Loans (Attachment #7)…………………..p. 97 

10. Reports 

a. Town Manager’s Report (Attachment #8)…………………………………………………………...………. p. 98  

b. Departmental Reports (Attachment #9)………………………………………………………………..………p.99  – 108 

 

11. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 

a. Calendars (Attachment #10)………………………………………………………………………….…………………p.109 - 110 

b. Correspondence  

12. Matters from Council 

13. Closed Session  

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(3) regarding discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a 
public purpose, or of the disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open meeting 
would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public body  
 
Section 2.2-3711 (A)(7) regarding consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by a public body 
regarding specific legal matters requiring the provisions of legal advice by such counsel. 
 
 

14. Adjournment 

 

UPCOMING COUNCIL MEETINGS/ACTIVITIES -Calendar 

 (All meetings are at Town Hall unless otherwise noted) 

Tuesday, September 26, 2017 @ 5:00 p.m. Town Council Work Session 

Tuesday, October 10, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, October 24, 2017 @ 5:00 p.m.  Town Council Work Session 

 

Notice to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act:  Special assistance is available for disabled persons addressing Town 
Council. Efforts will be made to provide adaptations or accommodations based on individual needs of qualified individuals with 
disability, provided that reasonable advance notification has been received by the Town Clerk’s Office.  For assistance, please 
contact the Town Clerk’s Office, Town of Altavista, 510 Seventh Street, Altavista, VA  24517 or by calling (434) 369-5001. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to participate in your Town Council meeting.  The Mayor and Members of Council invite and 
encourage you to attend whenever possible because good government depends on the interest and involvement of citizens. 

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Minutes │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 Minutes in draft form are attached for Council’s review.  The minutes are from the Town 
Council’s regular meeting held August 8, 2017; and the Council’s Work Session held on August 
22, 2017.   If there are any corrections, please call the Town Manager in advance of Tuesday 
night’s meeting so that corrected versions of the draft minutes can be circulated for review 
before adoption of the Consent Agenda 

 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval   

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the minutes of the August 8, 2017 
Regular Meeting; and the August 22, 2017 Work Session.   

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Minutes (August 8, 2017 & August 22, 2017) 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7a │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2a │ 



Regular Council Meeting—August 8, 2017 

 

 

The meeting of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council Chambers 

of the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street on August 8, 2017 at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided.   

           

2. Pastor Nick Jones, Central Baptist Church, gave the invocation. 

 

Council members 

 present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield 

      Mrs. Beverley Dalton  

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  

     Mr. Timothy George 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey 

 

Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 

     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 

Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 

Deputy Chief Kenneth Moorefield 

Mr. Dennis Jarvis, Economic Dev. Director 

Mr. David Garrett, Public Works Director 

Mr. Tom Fore, Public Utilities Director 

     Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 

     Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4. Mayor Mattox asked if there were any questions or changes to the agenda. 

 

      Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. George, motioned to approve the agenda as presented. 

               

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

5. Recognitions and Presentation 

 

6. Public Comment 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to speak on anything not listed on the 

agenda.   

 

No one came forward.   

 

7. Consent Agenda 

 

a) Minutes- Regular Meeting July 11, 2017/Council’s Work Session July 25, 2017 –

The Council approved the minutes of the Council meeting and Council Work 

Session meeting.   

b) Monthly Finance Reports-Council approved the monthly reports 

i. Invoices 

ii. Revenues & Expenditures Report 

iii. Reserve Balance/Investment Report 

c) Budget Amendments 



Regular Council Meeting—August 8, 2017 

 

d) VDH Grant Application-Emergency Electrical Power Engineering 

Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Overbey, motioned to approve the consent agenda as 

presented. 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

8. Public Hearing 

 

a. Text Amendment—Zoning Ordinance—Section 86-32, 86-192, 86-482, 86-

483—“Non Profit Facility” and “Personal Service Business” Developmental 

Standards 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the scheduled public hearing is to receive comment on 

the proposed text amendments to Section 86-32, 86-192, 86-482, 86-483.  He 

noted the Planning Commission held their public hearing and recommends 

approval of the changes. 

 

Mayor Mattox opened the public hearing at 7:04 p.m. and asked if anyone 

would like to come forward and speak.  No one came forward.  Mayor Mattox 

closed the public hearing at 7:04 p.m. 

 

Mr. Emerson, seconded by Mrs. Brumfield, motioned to approve the proposed 

text amendments to Section 86-32, 86-192, 86-482, 86-483.   

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

9. New/Unfinished Business 

 

a. Planning Commission Update/Request 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing 

on a Special Use Permit application for 902 Main Street on Monday, August 

7, 2017. The application requests consideration of a “Major Auto Repair” 

facility at 902 Main Street, which is in the C-2 Commercial District. 

He noted as the Planning Commission meeting was the day before the Council 

Meeting, staff was giving a verbal update.  

 

Mr. George mentioned this would be a new business in town as a mechanic 

shop. He noted there are other mechanical businesses on Main Street and 

because they fall into the grandfather clause are not required to have a closed 

in area for the cars they work on.  Mr. George stated Mr. Payne was 

wondering how quickly the fence had to be installed.  He felt Mr. Payne 

should not be required to put in the fence, as it would be the only one on the 

street and noted there was adequate room behind the building for the vehicles.  

 

Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Overbey, motioned to schedule a public 

hearing for September 12, 2017 to receive comments on the proposed Special 



Regular Council Meeting—August 8, 2017 

 

Use Permit application for 902 Main Street for a “Major Auto Repair” facility 

at 902 Main Street. 

 

Mr. Witt advised he has meet with Mr. Timith Payne and Mr. Chad Shelton 

(the property owner).  Mr. Payne stated he had already received approval from 

Mr. Shelton to building the fence.  His intention is to have the fence in place 

before the September public hearing.  Mr. Witt advised Mr. Payne of 

Council’s contact information as Mr. Payne wants to make them aware of his 

desire to handle this the right way. 

 

Mayor Mattox encouraged Council members to visit the location and talk with 

the owner if there are concerns. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

10. Reports 

 

a. Town Manager’s Report  

 

Strategic Planning Retreat 

 Scheduled for Wednesday, August 30th at the Altavista Train Station. 

 Mr. Kim Payne will be facilitating the Retreat. 

 

Staunton River RIFA 

 Staff continuing to work with other jurisdictions in regard to creation of the 

Staunton River 

 Regional Industrial Facility Authority. 

 Staff working with Peed & Bortz on the Utility Assessment for this project. 

Draft report due August 7th. 

 

Broadband Planning Study 

 Staff working on additional information and implementation scenarios. 

 Staff reviewing funding options. 

 Reviewing “peer communities” regarding implementation. 

 

Charlotte Avenue Drainage Project 

 Engineer preparing bid documents. 

 Staff evaluating funding options. 

 Pre-bid meeting held on August 2, 2017, bids due August 17, 2017. 

 

Rt. 43 Gateway Project (Streetscape/Utilities) 

 VDOT completing reviewing engineer contract. Once approved, engineer will 

begin the design phase of the project. 

 Staff evaluating funding options for the Utility portion of the project. 

 

English Park 

 Railroad deed being forwarded to Town. 

 RFP for Master Planning (Park and Trails) has been issued. 

 

Water Plant Projects 

 Water Treatment Plant Electrical Updates project (Southern Air) 

 Submittals of electrical components at 85% review. 

 Work on site should begin in next two weeks. 

 Facility Assessment and Improvement Plan (FAIP) 



Regular Council Meeting—August 8, 2017 

 

 Staff has met with Consultant on Water Treatment Plant and Distribution 

Technical Review 

 Staff meeting with Consultant on Wastewater Treatment Plant and Collection 

Technical Review 

 Springs Fluoride Improvement Project – Ongoing 

 Abbott meter and vault – Working with staff to build vault. 

 Right of Way Clearing - working with contractor on removal of trees on 

Clarion Tank lot and continuing annual clearing of right of ways/easements. 
 
Mr. Emerson left the Chamber at 7:12 p.m. and returned at 7:14 p.m. 
 
Mr. Coggsdale presented an update on the re-use of the effluent water from 

the town to Dominion Energy. 

 

b. Departmental Reports  

         

11. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 

 

a. Calendars-August/September 

 

12. Matters from Town Council 

 

Mr. Emerson asked for an update on the proposed boat ramp. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated he would be presenting a preliminary drawing at the work 

session. 

 

Mrs. Brumfield asked if the backwash decant is still being considered. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised this is something Woodward & Curran is working on. 

 

13. Closed Session 

 

I move that the Altavista Town Council convene in closed session in accordance with 

the provisions set out in the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended,  

 

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(3) regarding discussion or consideration of the acquisition of 

real property for a public purpose, or of the disposition of publicly held real property, 

where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position 

or negotiating strategy of the public body. 

 

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(7) regarding consultation with legal counsel employed or 

retained by a public body regarding specific legal matters requiring the provisions of 

legal advice by such counsel.  

 

A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, and seconded by Mr. George.  

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

      Council went into closed session at 7:15 P.M. 

  Notice was given that council was back in regular session 7:52 P.M. 

 

      FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION: 

A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Emerson, to adopt the      

certification of a closed meeting. 



Regular Council Meeting—August 8, 2017 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 

WHEREAS, the town council has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant to 

an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of The Virginia 

Freedom of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the        

town council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia 

law; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the town council hereby certifies that, 

to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully 

exempted from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the 

closed meeting to which this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public 

business matters as were identified in the motion convening the closed meeting were 

heard, discussed or considered by the town council. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

Mrs. Overbey, seconded by Mr. Emerson, motioned to approve the purchase of Tax 

Map #: 83A-4-1, Save and Except 3.8 083 acres per two separate plats as noted from 

Mr. Donald Holland for $29,000 and appropriation of said funds. Staff is authorized 

to complete the transaction and submit a budget amendment at a later date. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 
 

14. Adjournment 
                        

      Mayor Mattox asked if there was anything else to bring before Council. 

 

      The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 

 

______________________________ 

       Michael E. Mattox, Mayor  

 

         ________________________________ 

       J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

    

 

The work session of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council Chambers of 

the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street, on August 22, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

Council members 

 present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 

     Mrs. Beverley Dalton  

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  

Mr. Timothy George 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham  

Mrs. Tanya Overbey 

 

Council members 

absent:    Mrs. Micki Brumfield 

     

       

 Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 

     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 

     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 

     Mr. Dennis Jarvis, Economic Dev. Director 

     Chief Michael Milnor, APD    

     Mr. David Garrett, Director of Public Works 

Mr. Tom Fore, Director of Public Utilities 

Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 

     Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 

 

1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided. 

 

2. Mayor Mattox advised of an addition to the agenda: New Prospect Baptist Church “Relay 

for Life” Event Request. 

 

Mr. Emerson, seconded by Mrs. Dalton, made a motion to approve the agenda as 

amended. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes 

     Mrs. Beverly Dalton  Yes 

Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

3. Public Comments—Agenda Items Only 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to speak on anything listed on the agenda. 

 

No one came forward. 

 

4. Introductions and Special Presentations 

 

a. Rotary Club-Flag Presentation-“Flag Project” 

 

Mr. Steve Farmer, business owner and member of the Altavista Rotary Club, 

addressed Council advising the Altavista Rotary has purchased 50 United States of 

America flags for the decorative street lamp poles along Main Street and would like 

to place them in one area of Main Street.  He noted there are 122 decorative street 

lamp poles and the Altavista Rotary would eventually purchase the remainder.  The 

cost of these flags are approximately $44.00 each.  Mr. Farmer stated they would be 

contacting other organizations and private citizens that may be interested in helping 

with this project.  The request of the Rotary Club is that the town employees install 

the brackets on the designated poles.  The Rotary Club would provide the flags and be 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

responsible for putting them up and taking them down noting the flags would be put 

up on at least 7 occasions.  Mr. Farmer felt the flags would beautify the town. 

 

Council was in agreement that this was a great idea.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked if Council was willing to help with the remaining flags as a 

match of funds. 

 

Mr. Farmer noted they plan to contact the Altavista Chamber of Commerce, Altavista 

on Track, the Town and concerned citizens in regards to supporting this project.   

 

Mr. Emerson suggested asking Mr. Farmer to advise if assistance is needed after 

contacting the other organizations. 

 

Mrs. Dalton motioned, Mr. Emerson seconded, to honor Mr. Farmer’s request that the 

Town’s employees install the brackets on the designated poles.   

 

Mrs. Dalton amended her motion, Mr. Emerson seconded, to allow the Town’s 

employees to install brackets on all of the decorative poles. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes 

     Mrs. Beverly Dalton  Yes 

Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

 

5. Items for Discussion 

 

a. Bedford Avenue Park Discussion (Tennis Courts) 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised last month, Council considered a previous recommendation 

from the Recreation Committee regarding the removal of the tennis courts at the 

Bedford Avenue Park.  Discussion focused on whether to remove the courts or 

repair/reconstruct them.  He advised staff contacted Dr. Robert Johnson, 

Superintendent of Campbell County Schools, concerning their policy of public use of 

school facilities during the school year/hours.  Dr. Johnson indicated that it is their 

practice to not allow school facilities, including tennis courts, to be used during 

school hours throughout the school year.   This period would run from approximately 

mid-August to late May/early June from the hours of approximately 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 

p.m. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated staff also spoke with Mr. Steve Jester, Executive Director of the 

Altavista Area YMCA, who indicated that he would consider public use of the 

YMCA’s courts if it were a request of Town Council.   Mr. Coggsdale stated 

previously staff reported to Council that the cost to reconstruct the tennis courts at the 

high school was approximately $122,000, which included their four courts.  There are 

only two courts at the Bedford Avenue Park.  Staff has received a quote to reconstruct 

the courts and is seeking another for comparison purposes.  He noted the options 

included:  1) Repair/reconstruction of the tennis courts; 2) Removal of the tennis 

courts; or 3) Removal of the tennis courts and relocation of new tennis courts. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale presented Council with recommendations from the Recreation 

Committee which included their previous recommendation of having the courts 

removed, reseed the area and possibly adding benches and picnic tables along with a 

sidewalk. 

 

Mr. George noted soon the town will hire a firm for the Master Plan and they will 

survey citizens to see what is wanted.  There is still the option to build tennis courts at  



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

 

English Park if that is what is wanted.  He felt the consensus is there is not a large 

demand for tennis.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised he visited the park and there are two half basketball courts.  

He measured the courts for the consideration of pickle ball courts but found them not 

to be wide enough.   

 

Mrs. Dalton asked what would happen to the existing courts while Council is waiting 

for the planning and surveying to occur.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Recreation Committee suggests removing the courts. 

 

Mr. George stated they would like to turn it into a green space with trees, benches and 

picnic tables.  He stated they would also like to get away from the parking issue; 

although there is parking on Bedford Avenue people are parking in the grass along 

Myrtle Lane and the alley.   He added the chain-link fence around the basketball court 

at English Park is being removed, except for the back fence near the railroad tracks.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked if it was the consensus of Council to wait until the Master Plan 

has been reviewed before making a decision. 

 

Mr. George stated he is ready to move forward. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated the Recreation Committee is ready to move forward with the 

Bedford Avenue Park and build new courts if needed.   

 

Mr. George stated there was discussion if something was done for one neighborhood 

park was Council obligated to go above and beyond for the other parks. 

 

Mrs. Dalton stated she was on Council when the neighborhood parks were discussed 

and there was never a discussion about having them exactly alike.   The discussion 

was to make each one the best it could be, where it could be.  Mrs. Dalton felt the 

tennis courts needed to be left there and it might be less dollars to reconstitute them 

there before ripping them out.  She felt they should be left as they are until the 

planning is finished.   

 

Mayor Mattox suggested waiting until the Master Plan is completed before anything 

is done. 

 

Mrs. Dalton stated her other thought about the tennis court is that it is probably not 

the most popular sport at the moment. 

 

Mr. George stated he is prepared to go along with Council but another set of tennis 

courts is redundant when other courts are available and felt spending the money on 

other courts is not money well spent. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked about signage at the park regarding the roughness of the courts. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated there are wide cracks but not unevenness. This makes the tennis 

court not the best for playing on but not a major issue in terms of safety noting staff 

could take some precautions with signage in that area. 

 

Mr. Eller felt filling the cracks and signage such as “Play at your own risk.  Rough 

Surface” would be appropriate. 

 

       Mr. Emerson questioned the Master Plan details; when would this take place. 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the RFP is due August 31, 2017.  Council will be advised at 

their September work session and it should be implemented next spring or summer.  

Mr. Coggsdale stated hopefully Council will have data that will help with the creation 

of the CIP for next year’s budget.   

 

Mr. Emerson stated he is fine with this but it seems everything that is done takes 

years to accomplish which is concerning.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked for a consensus to keep things as they are, repair the cracks, add 

some signage and wait for the Master Plan. 

 

Mr. George requested that “No Parking” signs be added in the grassy area at the 

Bedford Avenue Park.   

 

                 Mr. Coggsdale clarified what area. 

 

Mr. George suggested in the alley and the areas surrounding the park.  He noted there 

is a yellow strip there which would indicate “No Parking” but did not feel people 

would know that.  Mr. George stated he visited the other parks and there are plenty of 

“No Parking” signs. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised staff would take care of the “No Parking” signs.  

 

Chief Milnor stated the officers are presently giving warnings about the parking 

instead of tickets at the Bedford Avenue Park area at this time. 

  

It was the consensus of Council to keep things as they are, repair the cracks, add some     

signage and wait for the Master Plan. 

 

b. Nuisance/Blighted Property Discussion 

 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised Council directed staff to identify several nuisance properties and 

present those to Council for consideration of further action. He noted staff is providing 

seven (7) structures for discussion.  

 

Mr. Witt presented Council with a PowerPoint presentation of these nuisance properties.  

 

With the first property shown, Mr. Higginbotham asked Mr. Witt for his 

recommendations. 

 

Mr. Witt did not feel the house was repairable.  He stated in the past, Council has 

allocated $10,000 for a no interest loan; this was not being used and was not put in the 

budget.  He asked Council to consider re-establishing this line item in the budget.  The no 

interest loans were for a period of 3 years and the average loan was between $3,000 and 

$3,500.  He felt at the least the house on Hughes Street needs to be boarded up with 

bushes and overgrowth removed. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale felt Council would be back in 6 months discussing derelict properties 

because doing the minimum will lead to a second process. He stated it might be good to 

contact the property owner and let them know there is a problem. 

 

Mr. Witt confirmed with Mr. Gary McGyver, Campbell County Building Inspections, the 

statewide building code states every opening (windows and doors) has to be boarded up. 

 

Mr. Emerson questioned if this is for a period of six months then the property owner has 

to do something different. 

 

Mr. Witt stated they have to come back to Council with a plan. 

 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

Mrs. Dalton asked what if the property owner comes back after six months of boarding 

up the property and says they don’t have a clue what they plan to do. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated staff cannot tell them what to do with the property until it is 

declared a derelict property. 

 

Mrs. Dalton asked what the harm would be in telling a property owner that the property 

could be declared derelict property. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated this would not be a problem. 

 

Mrs. Dalton stated if she was a property owner and was told that she needed to board up a 

building which would be dollars out of her pocket, then six months later would have to 

show staff a plan and what if she intends to turn this house into a livable structure. 

 

Mr. Witt responded it would be to renovate or remove. 

 

Mrs. Dalton asked if staff is going to tell this all at once.  She suggested advising the 

property owner from the beginning.  

 

Mr. Witt referred to one structure that was livable up to 2016 when it caught fire and 

gutted the inside of the home.  He was unsure if the homeowner did not have insurance or 

if he chose not to fix it.   

 

Mr. Emerson asked if this structure was condemned and suggested staff contact the Fire 

Marshal. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham suggested talking to the homeowner to see if they plan to restore or 

tear down noting there needs to be communication.  

 

Mrs. Overbey stated she is in agreement with Mr. Emerson that the Fire Marshal should 

be contacted. 

 

Mr. Witt advised he would be in contact with the Fire Marshal. 

 

Mr. Eller advised of the procedure used by former Councilman Coleman and Mr. Witt.  

They would look at these structures and Council would then decide if it is a possible 

nuisance under the procedure (ordinance) then send a letter to the owner and tell him he 

needs to come to the next Council meeting and discuss whether or not it should be 

declared a public nuisance.  Council would make that determination.  He noted the 

property that Mr. Witt showed on Hughes Street would be considered a public nuisance 

because it is overgrown and not secure.  He mentioned some previous nuisance properties 

and only the windows/doors that were broken out were boarded up. Mr. Eller stated the 

derelict building ordinance states the building has to be of apparent danger to one’s health 

and safety 

 

Mr. Coggsdale noted the definition of a derelict building is it has to be boarded up. 

 

Mrs. Dalton stated the property owner needs to be made aware they need to make the 

structure safe and after six months they need to present a plan. 

 

Mr. Emerson asked why Council needs to see all the pictures.  He felt the pictures need to 

come after staff has done all they can do. 

 

Mayor Mattox stated staff is following the procedure that has been followed in the past.  

The code states staff will identify properties, then before Council can declare a nuisance 

the property owner has to be given the opportunity to come before Council with a plan. 

 

Mr. Emerson did not feel this was private showing Council the properties before 

contacting the property owner. 

 

Mr. Eller stated when the property maintenance code was put together Section 21-1 says 

the town has the right to remove, repair, secure any buildings which might affect public 

health or safety to residents, including doing maintenance work and other things. The 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

owner has to be notified by certified mail. Council advised they wanted to know of any 

property that Section 21-1 would be used on.  This is the reason for this preview.   

 

Mr. Emerson asked if staff had done everything required before showing the slides of the 

houses. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated Council can’t make someone paint their houses, etc.  Section 21-2 

requires a reasonable notice to the property owner.  He stated there is nothing in the code 

that says staff can go to a property owner and say “you have got to do these things”.   

 

Mr. Emerson asked if a letter could be sent first and let the owner know, staff is preparing 

to look at your property and there is an interest in knowing what you are doing to clean 

up the site.    

 

Mrs. Dalton stated the last time Council dealt with houses, staff was told Council wanted 

to know about them. 

 

Mr. Witt advised Council has been presented with an ordinance from another locality that 

may cover the needs as it outlines what staff can and cannot do.  

 

Mr. Eller noted he has provided one that he prepared that says much of the same thing. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked who would make the decision on whether or not a structure has 

reached the threshold of being under inspection of the Town of Altavista; should staff do 

this or Council.    

 

Mr. Fore stated as being on the Amherst County Board of Supervisors, they allowed the 

Building Inspector to make this determination.  The Building Inspector trained a Law 

Enforcement official as a county enforcement inspector.  This person would inspect and 

make a recommendation back to the Board of Supervisors. 

 

Mr. Eller noted once a property maintenance code is passed, Council would be able to do 

this. 

 

Mr. George stated this has been discussed in the Planning Commission meetings and 

there are no codes to allow them to move forward with property maintenance. 

 

Mrs. Overbey did not feel there was sufficient code and agreed with Mr. Emerson that 

staff should decide on which property owners should get letters.  She stated if you drive 

through this town with fresh eyes, it is pretty unsightly and hard to bring new businesses 

or residents to this community with this.  Mrs. Overbey stated she has confidence in staff 

to make these common sense decisions.   

 

Mayor Mattox reminded Council staff is doing what was requested of them at the last 

meeting and asked if they wanted to continue with the PowerPoint presentation. 

 

Mrs. Dalton asked to proceed. 

 

Mr. Witt advised previously he would send the property owners a letter declaring the 

property a public nuisance and would give them 30 days to abate the items as listed.  The 

property owner was told to contact Mr. Witt and if he did not hear from them, he would 

then approach Council.  A time was set to allow for the abatement and if not he would 

have the property cleaned up and bill the property owner. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale did not feel staff had direction on what Council wants them to do. 

 

Mr. Emerson felt letters need to be sent out to the property owners. 

 

Mr. Witt proceeded with the Power Point presentation.  He advised he would send 

“warning” notices offering an opportunity to talk with them about their plans and a 

timeframe.  He will offer them the no interest loan.  He stated he will update Council in a 

report type format.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked if it was the consensus of Council that staff have contact with the 

property owner before bringing before Council.   Council agreed. 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

 

Mr. Witt asked Council to consider increasing the no interest loan line item by $5,000. 

 

Mrs. Dalton suggested this item by placed on the September 12, 2017 Council meeting 

agenda.  

 

     

c. Ordinance Discussion (Junk, Debris Trash, Etc.) 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised in an effort to address situations that appear to be unsightly, 

staff has found that the different ordinances at our disposal lack clarity about 

achieving the objective of staff, as well as some Council members. This discussion 

will seek to address areas that are lacking in the ordinances and what can be done to 

resolve that issue. It will also be an opportunity for Council to convey their vision for 

the preferred state of properties in Town.  He presented Council with an ordinance 

developed by John Eller, Town Attorney and an existing ordinance from the Town of 

Dayton, VA. Mr. Coggsdale asked if toys laying in a front yard is a violation as 

opposed to tires in the front yard.  He stated to some people it is not. 

 

Mr. George asked if this is something that can be discussed at the Retreat noting some 

of these are grey areas.   

 

Mr. Eller noted all of the ordinances have to be tied to public health and safety.   

 

It was the consensus of Council to discuss this matter at the September regular 

meeting. 

 

 

d. Canoe Launch Site Development Update 

 

Mr. Witt advised he has worked with Gay & Neel and they have provided a power 

point of the site plan for the Canoe Launch.  He noted the site plan has been changed 

which is advantageous for the Town.  The site work has been reduced from $90,000 

to $10,000.  The location of the canoe launch is being moved down stream and the 

launch will be placed at a 45 degree angle.  The size of the paving area was reduced 

which also reduces cost and the need for a retention pond.  Mr. Witt noted there are 

20 parking spaces along with spaces for vehicles pulling trailers.   

 

Mr. Higginbotham suggested angling the parking spaces more. 

 

Mr. Witt presented Council with the updates of the actual process. He stated with the 

grant opportunities he is going to reach out to Cynthia Waymack to determine if this 

grant can be applied for.  Last year the minimum cost for the project had to be 

$400,000; the project came in at $429,000.  The probable cost is down $45,000.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked on the grant, if there is some wiggle room for enhancements that 

would allow the town to apply for the grant. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised when the figure is provided, staff can provide some options 

on how to get there.   

 

e. Delinquent Tax List 

 

Mrs. Shelton provided the annual listing of delinquent taxpayers as required by 

Section 70-3 of the Town code.  This year’s outstanding taxes total $26,807.28 (as of 

8/18/17); an increase of $5,600 over last year’s listing.  Personal Property taxpayers 

account for the majority of the listing totaling $22,647.75 - most of which are taxes 

on vehicles.    She noted as in the past, the Department of Motor Vehicles has been 

authorized to place stops on all active vehicles owned by these taxpayers.  Currently, 

there is a $40 administrative fee for a stop to be removed once taxes are paid; half of 

the revenue remains with the Town and half is forwarded to DMV.  She advised  

DMV will be raising their fee associated with the VRWP from $20 to $25 effective 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

9/01.  Beginning 9/01/2017, the new fee to release a stop will be $45.00.  The 

remainder of the tax listing accounts for outstanding real estate taxes totaling 

$4,159.53.    

 

Mrs. Shelton requested permission from Council to advertise the presented listing of 

delinquent taxpayers in the Altavista Journal and to prorate the cost of the ad to the 

delinquent taxpayers.  Over the last 11 years, an average of 98% of taxes billed were 

collected prior to running the ad and placing stops on vehicles.  After aggressive 

collecting efforts, the collection rate over these 11 years increased to an average of 

99.72%.  She noted according to the auditors, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, 

based on their experience auditing local governments, most localities are around the 

mid 90’s for a percent of tax levy collected.     

 

Mrs. Shelton requested permission from Council to write-off delinquent Personal 

Property taxes for deceased individuals in the amount of $638.83, delinquent Personal 

Property and Real Estate taxes under $20.00 in the amount of $76.62 and uncollectible 

Real Estate taxes on two parcels in the amount of $1,483.20.  She noted a lien was 

placed on both properties.  The properties sold but did not bring enough to pay the town 

the taxes due.   

 

Mrs. Shelton stated due to the statute of limitations regarding Personal Property taxes, 

the 2012 taxes in the amount of $3,992.87 are due to be written off.  She requested 

permission from Council to write-off the 2012 delinquent personal property taxes with 

collection efforts continuing thru June 2018.   

 

It was the consensus of Council to place these items on the consent agenda. 

 

 

f. Region 2000 Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Town of Altavista participated in the Region 2000 Hazard 

Mitigation Plan process in 2012 with adoption in 2013. In order to be eligible for 

mitigation funding either pre-disaster or post-disaster, the Town must participate in the 

Mitigation Planning process. The Town’s share is $2,500, which may be split over two 

budget years. (FY2018 and FY2019). He noted it is staff’s recommendation to participate 

in the process.  

 

Mr. Higginbotham questioned the benefit of this. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised should there be a hazard impacting housing, they have the ability 

to apply for funds.  Without this plan, the option is not available to the citizens. 

 

It was the consensus of Council to place this item on the consent agenda and pay the total 

cost in full. 

 

g. Charlotte Drainage Project & 7th Street Sidewalk Project Bid Review 

 

Mr. Coggsdale presented Council with a letter from Hurt & Profitt, Inc. regarding the  

Charlotte Drainage and 7th Street Sidewalk Projects and the results of the bidding 

process.  They noted the low bidder was Best GC. 

 
It was the consensus of Council to place this item on the consent agenda. 

 

h. Urban Archery Update 

 

Mr. Witt advised the Urban season opens on September 2 through October 6 and 

January 7, 2018 through March 25, 2018. As previously reported, archery hunters 

reported harvesting 11 deer on Town owned properties during last year’s season. Fifteen 

(15) hunters were given permission to hunt on the four (4) identified properties, Greenhill 

Cemetery, dead end of 11th Street, property at the corner of Franklin Ave., 10th  Street and 

the acreage north of the wastewater treatment plant. With the acquisition of the Donald 

Holland property, he asked that Council consider including this property (approximately 

47 acres) in the town owned urban archery program and increase the number of permits 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION AUGUST 22, 2017 

that may be issued up to 20.  Mr. Witt noted the state has now implemented the “Earn a 

Buck” program. 

 

Mr. George asked if the property has been surveyed. 

 

Mr. Witt responded it is pretty well known and felt it was a safe area.  He noted he has 

not given permission for anyone to hunt from the ground on town property; it has to be 

from a tree stand only. 

 

It was the consensus of Council to allow Mr. Witt to move forward with including the 

recently purchased land into the hunting locations and to increase the number of permits 

to 20. 

 

i. Retreat Update 

 

Mr. Coggsdale presented Council with the agenda for the Planning retreat. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised he has received a request from New Prospect Baptist Church 

Relay for Life Team, Mrs. Karen Mattox, to use the English Park for a 5K fundraiser.  

The event would be a Halloween “Glow” run/walk for the American Cancer Society 

and held on October 28th at 6:00 p.m.  The closing hours of the park would have to be 

extended for this event.   

 

It was the consensus of Council to allow New Prospect Baptist Church Relay for Life 

Team to use the English Park for a 5K fundraiser.   

 

 Mayor Mattox thanked Mr. Garrett for repairing the Library clock. 

 

 

j. Project Updates 

 

Mr. Garrett gave an update on the alleys that are being paved. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale confirmed approval of removing the fencing around the basketball 

courts at English Park. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham questioned the amount being spent to repave the basketball courts. 

 

Mr. Garrett did not have the figure available. 

 

Council was in agreement. 

 

6. Public Comments 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to comment on anything not listed on the 

agenda. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone else would like to speak.  No one came forward. 

 

 

7. Adjournment 

             

Mayor Mattox adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 

 

 

_______________ 

                Michael E. Mattox, Mayor 

 

_______________________________________ 

         J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk 

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Monthly Financial Reports │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 Attached are the following Financial Reports: 

 

 Invoices paid during the month 

 Revenue & Expenditure Reports   

 Reserve Balance/Investment Report 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Acceptance   

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to accept the monthly financial reports as 
presented.   

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Invoices, Monthly Revenue & Expenses; Monthly Reserve & 
Investments 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7b │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2b │ 



ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                ACCOUNTING PERIOD 02/2018 

TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                           FROM: 08/01/2017  TO: 08/31/2017  

 

CHECK    VENDOR          VENDOR                    CHECK               CHECK  

   NO        NO           NAME                      DATE              AMOUNT  

 

  36414       9 AFLAC                           08/02/2017          2,048.83  

  36415      39 ALL POINTS EAP & ORGANIZATIONA  08/02/2017            771.88  

  36416 9999998 Broggin, Georgia                08/02/2017            250.00  

  36417      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          08/02/2017          3,968.61  

  36418 9999997 CROUCH, ALISHA                  08/02/2017            109.10  

  36419     754 D L BRYANT HEATING & COOLING    08/02/2017            557.69  

  36420     786 DUDE SOLUTIONS INC              08/02/2017          1,390.00  

  36421     123 FIRE & SAFETY EQUIP CO INC      08/02/2017            315.62  

  36422      41 FISHER SCIENTIFIC               08/02/2017            978.06  

  36423      43 FOSTER FUELS INC                08/02/2017         11,135.59  

  36424      52 HACH COMPANY                    08/02/2017          1,210.95  

  36425      58 INSTRUMENTATION SERVICES INC    08/02/2017            708.00  

  36426     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  08/02/2017          2,850.00  

  36427     143 KONE INC                        08/02/2017            594.96  

  36428       1 LAURIE THOMAS                   08/02/2017             50.00  

  36429     138 MID ATLANTIC PRINTERS LTD       08/02/2017            302.00  

  36430     218 MINNESOTA LIFE                  08/02/2017            148.62  

  36431     121 MULTI BUSINESS FORMS INC        08/02/2017            774.20  

  36432 9999997 NASH, DANIELLE MARIE            08/02/2017              5.32  

  36433     765 PRIVIA MEDICAL GROUP LLC        08/02/2017            270.00  

  36434     379 REI CONSULTANTS INC             08/02/2017            730.42  

  36435     627 SOUTHERN AIR INC                08/02/2017         35,934.73  

  36436     778 SPRINT                          08/02/2017          1,166.81  

  36437     722 UTILITY SERVICE CO INC          08/02/2017        198,581.08  

  36438     601 VACORP                          08/02/2017            190.41  

  36439     130 VDH-WATERWORKS TECH ASSIST FUN  08/02/2017          4,953.05  

  36440     787 VIRGINIA TECHNICAL INSTITUTE    08/02/2017          3,356.00  

  36441       1 JOHNS WOODSON 2ND               08/11/2017            100.00  

  36442     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             08/11/2017            325.00  

  36443     461 KATHI BOGERT                    08/11/2017            862.68  

  36444       4 BOXLEY AGGREGATES               08/11/2017          1,161.72  

  36445       1 BRANDON WAGMAN                  08/11/2017             35.34  

  36446     427 CENTURYLINK                     08/11/2017            813.93  

  36447     145 CHANDLER CONCRETE CO INC        08/11/2017            207.00  

  36448      28 COLUMBIA GAS                    08/11/2017            145.01  

  36449      32 CONTROL EQUIPMENT CO INC        08/11/2017          1,096.99  

  36450     164 DMV                             08/11/2017            220.00  

  36451      36 DOMINION VIRGINIA POWER         08/11/2017         43,799.95  

  36452      20 J JOHNSON ELLER JR              08/11/2017          2,000.00  

  36453      71 FAIRPOINT COMMUNICATIONS        08/11/2017            367.81  

  36454     305 HAWKINS-GRAVES INC              08/11/2017          1,241.62  

  36455      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  08/11/2017            675.00  

  36456       1 JJ ELLER FIDUCIARY ACCOUNT      08/11/2017         29,043.00  

  36457     158 KORMAN SIGNS INC                08/11/2017          3,164.79  

  36458     476 LBM OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC        08/11/2017            130.27  

  36459     172 LLOYD ELECTRIC COMPANY INC      08/11/2017          1,501.23  

  36460     788 MOMAR INC                       08/11/2017            961.95  

  36461       1 MAIN STREET CAFE                08/11/2017            149.60  

  36462       1 MICHAEL ABBOTT                  08/11/2017             73.27  

  36463     791 BRIAN PARROW                    08/11/2017          9,850.00  

  36464     358 PHILLIPS EQUIPMENT CORPORATION  08/11/2017          3,903.13  



  36465     789 PLUMB-RITE PLUMBING SERVICE IN  08/11/2017            250.00  

  36466     584 RICHMOND MACHINERY              08/11/2017          3,850.00  

  36467     718 ROTARY CLUB OF ALTAVISTA VA     08/11/2017            192.00  

  36468     504 SAFE SPACES LLC                 08/11/2017            166.09  

  36469       1 SHAYNE PETRIE                   08/11/2017             42.27  

  36470      80 SOUTHSIDE ELECTRIC COOP         08/11/2017            849.06  

  36471       1 STANLEY RUSSELL                 08/11/2017            100.00  

  36472     124 TREASURER OF VA                 08/11/2017            206.50  

  36473      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  08/11/2017            553.15  

  36474     515 DALE TYREE JR                   08/11/2017          3,025.00  

  36475     756 WAGEWORKS INC                   08/11/2017            160.92  

  36476 9999998 WHITE, STEVE                    08/11/2017            150.00  

  36477       1 WILLIAM REED                    08/11/2017             84.94  

  36478     658 WKDE-FM                         08/11/2017            199.00  

  36479     551 WOHLFORD, LARRY                 08/11/2017            160.00  

  36480     700 WOODARD & CURRAN                08/11/2017          7,792.65  

  36481     207 AEDA                            08/16/2017         27,500.00  

  36482     675 BKT UNIFORMS                    08/16/2017          1,036.80  

  36483     706 BLAIR MARKETING                 08/16/2017            845.00  

  36484      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          08/16/2017          1,237.60  

  36485     301 ENGLISH'S LLC                   08/16/2017            299.96  

  36486     118 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC #75    08/16/2017         17,518.77  

  36487      41 FISHER SCIENTIFIC               08/16/2017          3,689.25  

  36488     119 FOSTER ELECTRIC CO INC          08/16/2017            360.13  

  36489       1 GRAHAM PETRIE                   08/16/2017            100.00  

  36490      52 HACH COMPANY                    08/16/2017          3,296.89  

  36491       1 JIMMIE BROWN JR                 08/16/2017            145.50  

  36492       1 JUSTIN WYATT                    08/16/2017            100.00  

  36493     790 TIMOTHY MARTIN                  08/16/2017            285.00  

  36494     154 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION      08/16/2017            950.00  

  36495     300 NAPA AUTO PARTS                 08/16/2017            683.53  

  36496     454 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC         08/16/2017            408.30  

  36497     250 OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY           08/16/2017            440.00  

  36498       1 PAULINE BROWN                   08/16/2017             29.83  

  36499      92 UNIFIRST CORP                   08/16/2017          1,752.18  

  36500     110 VUPS INC                        08/16/2017             71.40  

  36501     116 XEROX CORPORATION               08/16/2017              VOID 

  36502       9 AFLAC                           08/24/2017          2,048.83  

  36503      84 ALTAVISTA JOURNAL               08/24/2017          1,823.95  

  36504     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             08/24/2017            325.00  

  36505     162 BENNETT'S MECHANICAL COMPANY I  08/24/2017          1,005.00  

  36506     294 BUSINESS CARD                   08/24/2017         18,454.85  

  36507       1 CHARLES SMITH                   08/24/2017             67.14  

  36508       1 CHERYL DUDLEY                   08/24/2017             19.03  

  36509       1 CMG GRETNA                      08/24/2017            240.04  

  36510     381 EMORY C COLLINS CO INC          08/24/2017            651.67  

  36511     122 FEREBEE-JOHNSON COMPANY INC     08/24/2017          1,014.98  

  36512      43 FOSTER FUELS INC                08/24/2017             80.35  

  36513      46 GENTRY LOCKE ATTORNEYS          08/24/2017          1,024.75  

  36514      50 GRETNA TIRE INC                 08/24/2017            716.60  

  36515      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  08/24/2017            675.00  

  36516      58 INSTRUMENTATION SERVICES INC    08/24/2017          2,501.50   

  36517     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  08/24/2017          3,249.30   

  36518     143 KONE INC                        08/24/2017          9,921.35   

  36519     218 MINNESOTA LIFE                  08/24/2017            147.66   

  36520     792 MITCHELL 1                      08/24/2017          2,374.56   

  36521      67 ORKIN PEST CONTROL LLC          08/24/2017            286.16   



  36522     765 PRIVIA MEDICAL GROUP LLC        08/24/2017            125.00   

  36523     778 SPRINT                          08/24/2017          1,159.48   

  36524     237 TECH STAR INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONI  08/24/2017          3,249.00   

  36525     124 TREASURER OF VA                 08/24/2017          8,892.00   

  36526      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  08/24/2017            553.15   

  36527      96 UNIVAR USA INC                  08/24/2017          8,724.00   

  36528     136 USABLUEBOOK                     08/24/2017            317.95   

  36529     116 XEROX CORP                      08/24/2017            249.82   

  36530     793 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES        08/24/2017            382.00   

  36531      91 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD   08/28/2017         36,838.00   

  36532      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          08/31/2017          9,140.18   

  36533     583 CAMPBELL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  08/31/2017            902.86   

  36534      19 CARTER MACHINERY CO INC         08/31/2017             47.62   

  36535     427 CENTURYLINK                     08/31/2017          1,114.13   

  36536     145 CHANDLER CONCRETE CO INC        08/31/2017            598.50   

  36537      28 COLUMBIA GAS                    08/31/2017            159.15   

  36538     754 D L BRYANT HEATING & COOLING    08/31/2017             75.00   

  36539     119 FOSTER ELECTRIC CO INC          08/31/2017            670.25   

  36540     639 GAY AND NEEL INC                08/31/2017          4,295.50   

  36541     648 HALEY FORD SOUTH                08/31/2017         33,033.14   

  36542     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  08/31/2017          5,353.93   

  36543     533 LYNN KIRBY                      08/31/2017            225.00   

  36544     379 REI CONSULTANTS INC             08/31/2017            408.19   

  36545      80 SOUTHSIDE ELECTRIC COOP         08/31/2017            864.29   

  36546       1 SVETLA WEAVER                   08/31/2017            377.23   

  36547      35 TREASURER OF VA/VITA            08/31/2017              6.87   

  36548      92 UNIFIRST CORP                   08/31/2017          2,479.70  

  36549     147 US POSTAL SERVICE/POSTMASTER    08/31/2017            225.00  

  36550     601 VACORP                          08/31/2017            189.60  

 

       NO. OF CHECKS:   137                  TOTAL CHECKS         621,629.02 

 













































Town of Altavista

Grand Total of all Investments and Deposits 17,216,626.58$   

Balance as of August 31, 2017 Reserve Policy

Non-Specific

Green Hill Cemetery 630,748.39

General Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 3,542,612.83

Altavista EDA Funding 266,852.61 *

266,852.61

Enterprise Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 1,034,628.95
PCB Remediation 569,707.59

Highway Fund 915,583.54

Police Federal 2,893.32

Police State 18,554.21

Public Funds Money Market Accounts 9,507,346.14

Operating Checking Account (Reconciled Balance) 727,699.00

DESIGNATED FUNDS 3,132,038.66

14,084,587.92 General Enterprise Total

Reserve Policy Funds (This figure changes annually w/audit) -6,663,417.00 Policy $ 5,202,534 1,460,883 6,663,417
UNDESIGNATED FUNDS 7,421,170.92

NOTES: Earmarked for Final Downtown Map-21 Project -121,600.00

ED rem balance of $35,000(website and marketing) -6,240.00

Earmarked for AOT No Interest Loan Program -40,000.00

"Pop-Up" Altavista Funding -10,000.00

Accrued Liability -153,155.86

Funds earmarked for items not completed during prior FY -377,000.00

Project Funds -54,788.45

Apprvd 9/22/15

Concept presented at work session for improvements to 

electrical at WTP and construction of new bldg to house 

electric panels

-537,500.00

Canoe Launch Site -135,350.00

Budget CIP Items Earmarked for Future Purchase -285,500.00

2/14/2017 H & P Engineering Fees for Charlotte Ave. drainage -17,142.00
UNDESIGNATED RESERVE FUND BALANCE 5,682,894.61



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Delinquent Tax List │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 At the August Town Council Work Session, staff presented the Delinquent Taxpayer list 
and sought approval to publish the list and add the pro-rated cost of the ad to each paid account. 
Staff also seeks to write off the specified accounts as outlined. The staff memo and Delinquent 
Taxpayer list are attached. 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the publishing of the Delinquent 
Taxpayer list, write off the specified accounts and proceed with collection as outlined.   

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Staff memo; and Delinquent Taxpayer list 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7c │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2c │ 











































  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Region 2000 Hazard Mitigation Plan│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 At the August Town Council Work Session, staff presented the request to participate in 
the Region 2000 Hazard Mitigation Plan update.  The last plan was done in 2013.  The cost to 
the Town of Altavista is $2,500.   The consensus of Town Council was to participate in the 
Region 2000 Hazard Mitigation Plan process and appropriate the $2,500 for this purpose in the 
FY2018 Budget.   Staff will present a budget amendment to Council at a later date. 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve participation in the Region 2000 
Hazard Mitigation Plan update and appropriate the funds ($2,500) in the FY2018 Budget.  

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   NO 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?   

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7d │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2d │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Charlotte Avenue Drainage Project/7th Street Sidewalk Project Bid Award│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 At the August Town Council Work Session, staff presented the information relative to 
the bids received for the Charlotte Avenue Drainage Project/7th Street Sidewalk Project Bid 
Award.   The consensus of Town Council was to award the bids for these projects.  Staff is 
currently working out a couple of details regarding the 7th Street Sidewalk project and will update 
Council at the meeting, if necessary. 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the Charlotte Avenue Drainage 
project bid as indicated.   Motion to approve the 7th Street Sidewalk project bid as indicated.  

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Hurt & Proffitt Project Bid Award Recommendation letter 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DTG 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7e │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2e │ 



  

 

 

2524 LANGHORNE ROAD 

LYNCHBURG, VA 24501 

800-242-4906 TOLL FREE 

434-847-7796 MAIN 

434-847-0047 FAX 

www.HandP.com 

 

 

*ENGINEERING >> SURVEYING >> PLANNING 

 
 
 
August 21, 2017 
 
 
 
Mr. Waverly Coggsdale, III 
Town Manager 
Town of Altavista 
510 7

th
 Street  

Altavista, VA 24517 
 
 
 
Subject: Town of Altavista Drainage Improvements 
  H&P # 20170051 & 20170052 

 

 

Dear Mr. Coggsdale III: 

 

Hurt and Proffitt has been working with the Town of Altavista to prepare construction 

documents for storm water drainage improvements in two areas of Town.  The Part A 

drainage improvements include replacement of 150 lf sidewalk, curb, and appurtenances 

along 7th Street while Part B improvements include the installation of 800 lf of storm 

sewer and appurtenances system from the intersection of 5th and Charlotte to Main 

Street.     

 

Bidding documents were prepared, reviewed, and advertised in both the Altavista News 

and the Lynchburg News and Advance.  In addition, the Invitation to Bid was provided to 

five contractors known to be qualified for this specialized work.  Three of the contractors 

subsequently requested construction documents.  A total of seven (7) contractors  

downloaded bid documents from the Hurt and Proffitt website.  The project was 

developed as a unit price bid project.  Separate subtotals for Part A and Part B were 

identified and bids were to be compared based on the total project cost (Part A + Part B).  

 

A public bid opening was held at the Altavista Town office at 2 pm, August 17, 2017.  

One bid was received, opened, and read aloud.  The low bidder was Best GC Inc.  A 

tabulation of the contractors bid and the engineer estimate is attached.  The information 

is summarized below:. 

 

Contractor        Part A Part B Base Bid 

Best GC Inc. $108,900 $190,310 $299,210 

    

Eng. Estimate $154,000 $138,270 $292,270 

 



Town of Altavista  August 21, 2017 
Drainage Improvements  Page 2 

 
 

 

We have contacted several of the contractors that requested bid documents but did not 

provide a bid.  They noted having other work/project tasks that need to be completed in 

the fall and that they did not have the resources to devote to this project.   

 

With a project bid ~2.5% above the estimated cost and the Town wanting to correct the 

7th Street drainage improvements this fall, we recommend that a construction contract be 

awarded to Best GC, Inc. for the Base Bid amount.   

 

Please contact us if you have any questions or if we may be of further assistance. 
 
Sincerely, 
Hurt & Proffitt, Inc. 

 
Mike Wilson, P.E. 
Director of Municipal/Government Engineering 
 
Encl. 
 



Altavista Drainage Improvements HP# 20170052

Pay       Engineer Estimate             Best GC Inc

Item No. Description Quantity Units Unit Price Price Unit Price Price

Part A - 7th Street Improvements

1 Connect to Ex. Structure 1 EA 1,000.00$      1,000.00$         2,500.00$      2,500.00$          

2 Storm Manhole 1 LS 4,500.00$      4,500.00$         3,000.00$      3,000.00$          

3 Curb Inlet Structure 1 EA 7,500.00$      7,500.00$         3,500.00$      3,500.00$          

4 15" RCP 30 LF 50.00$           1,500.00$         40.00$           1,200.00$          

5 8" DI Water line Relocation 1 LS 2,800.00$      2,800.00$         10,000.00$    10,000.00$        

6 New Water Service 5 EA 2,500.00$      12,500.00$       2,000.00$      10,000.00$        

7 Adjust Ex Structures to Grade 1 LS 5,000.00$      5,000.00$         3,000.00$      3,000.00$          

8 Trench Cut/Disposal 45 SY 25.00$           1,125.00$         20.00$           900.00$             

9 Trench Subbase (6" Layer) 45 SY 20.00$           900.00$            50.00$           2,250.00$          

10 Trench - Asphalt Base (8" Layer) 45 SY 20.00$           900.00$            75.00$           3,375.00$          

11 Street Subbase (5" Layer) 250 SY 25.00$           6,250.00$         42.00$           10,500.00$        

12 Remove Ex. Sidewalk & Curb 175 SY 25.00$           4,375.00$         25.00$           4,375.00$          

13 New Sidewalk & Subbase 175 SY 170.00$         29,750.00$       60.00$           10,500.00$        

14 New Facedown Curb 130 LF 40.00$           5,200.00$         30.00$           3,900.00$          

15 Sidewalk Bricks 1 LS 15,000.00$    15,000.00$       2,000.00$      2,000.00$          

16 Remove/Replace Tree Planter 1 LS 10,000.00$    10,000.00$       2,000.00$      2,000.00$          

17 Handicap Ramps 3 EA 1,000.00$      3,000.00$         800.00$         2,400.00$          

18 Concrete Entrance for Alley 1 EA 10,000.00$    10,000.00$       7,500.00$      7,500.00$          

19 Paint Stripping 1 LS 3,000.00$      3,000.00$         4,000.00$      4,000.00$          

20 Light Pole Base Adjustment 1 LS 2,000.00$      2,000.00$         3,000.00$      3,000.00$          

21 Traffic Control 1 LS 4,000.00$      4,000.00$         7,000.00$      7,000.00$          

22 Pre/Post Video Documentation 1 LS 3,000.00$      3,000.00$         2,000.00$      2,000.00$          

23 Mobilization 1 LS 6,700.00$      6,700.00$         10,000.00$    10,000.00$        

Part A Sub-total 140,000.00$     108,900.00$      

Part B - Charlotte Drainage

1 Connect to Ex. Structure 1 EA 1,000.00$      1,000.00$         3,000.00$      3,000.00$          

2 DI-1 Structure 7 EA 4,200.00$      29,400.00$       4,000.00$      28,000.00$        

3 12" HDPE 40 LF 40.00$           1,600.00$         35.00$           1,400.00$          

4 18" HDPE 30 LF 50.00$           1,500.00$         40.00$           1,200.00$          

5 24" HDPE 540 LF 60.00$           32,400.00$       50.00$           27,000.00$        

6 8" Wye & Downspout Connection 5 EA 800.00$         4,000.00$         400.00$         2,000.00$          

7 Remove Ex. Pavement - Trench 130 SY 25.00$           3,250.00$         35.00$           4,550.00$          

8 Trench Base Stone (6" Layer) 130 SY 20.00$           2,600.00$         50.00$           6,500.00$          

9 Trench - Base (8" Layer) 130 SY 20.00$           2,600.00$         70.00$           9,100.00$          

10 Remove Replace Conc. Sidewalk 20 SY 200.00$         4,000.00$         60.00$           1,200.00$          

11 Remove Ex. Pavement & Subbase 630 SY 25.00$           15,750.00$       95.00$           59,850.00$        

12 Street Subbase (6" Layer) 630 SY 20.00$           12,600.00$       40.00$           25,200.00$        

13 Parking Lot Stone 140 SY 25.71$           3,600.00$         16.50$           2,310.00$          

14 Seeding and Final Restoration 1 LS 1,500.00$      1,500.00$         3,000.00$      3,000.00$          

15 E&S Control 1 LS 1,000.00$      1,000.00$         4,000.00$      4,000.00$          

16 Traffic Control 1 LS 3,000.00$      3,000.00$         5,000.00$      5,000.00$          

17 Mobilization 1 LS 5,900.00$      5,900.00$         7,000.00$      7,000.00$          

Part A Sub-total 125,700.00$     190,310.00$      

Part A + Part B 265,700.00$     299,210.00$      

Contingency 26,570.00$       

Project Total 292,270.00$     299,210.00$      



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ New Prospect Baptist Church Fundraiser Request│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 At the August Town Council Work Session, staff considered a request by Karen Mattox 
on behalf of the New Prospect Baptist Church’s Relay for Life team for use of English Park for a 
5k Fundraiser.  The event is scheduled for October 28th and begin around 6:00 p.m.  Generally 
the park closes at dusk, so the request would include keeping the park open for this event.     The 
consensus of Town Council was to approve this request. 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the request of New Prospect Baptist 
Church for use of English Park for a fundraiser on October 28th as outlined.  

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   NO 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?   

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7f │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2f │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Public Hearing │ 

Subject Title:   │ Special Use Permit / 902 Main Street/ Auto Repair (Major)│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Attached is information regarding the application filed by Timith Payne for a Special Use Permit 
at 902 Frazier Road for establishment of an “automotive repair service, major” in a General 
Commercial (C-2) District.  Mr. Payne currently operates an “automotive repair service, minor” at 
this location.  
 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider a SUP application submitted by Mr. 
Payne to operate an automotive repair service (major) at 102 Frazier Road.  Staff properly 
advertised the hearing and no one spoke for or against the requested use.       
 

The Planning Commission recommends approval of the application with developmental 
standards with conditions set forth in Section 86-505 of the Altavista Town Code.  In addition 
the Planning Commission recommends the following conditions: 
 

1. The owner complies with Section 86-505 “Development Standards”;  
2. The owner limits the number of vehicles waiting for repairs to 7 and the number of 

vehicles ready for pick up to 3, as shown on the site plan. 
 

The Planning Commission’s recommendation is also attached. 
 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Staff recommends Town Council consider the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission; as well as potential other conditions as noted 
below: 

a. Automobile repair service, major definition be limited to automobiles and trucks up to light 
commercial.  All other types such as construction equipment, commercial trucks, agricultural 
implements and similar heavy equipment” be prohibited. 

b. Outdoor storage of vehicles awaiting major repair, equipment, and other materials be 
located behind the building in a screened area consisting of a fence of at least six (6) feet 
in height if they are to be located on the property longer than 48 hours. 

c. This approval shall be for an automotive repair business within the confines of the 
existing building and yard.  Any future expansion of the building or change in use shall 

Agenda Item #:   │ 8a │ 

Attachment #:  │  3 │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

require a new special use permit, unless such change is clearly incidental and does not 
represent a significant change from the permitted use in the opinion of the Zoning 
Administrator. 

d. The conditions of approval are affective as to the zoning compliance only.  The project 
will be required to comply with Federal, State and Local regulations. 

e. Property will maintain a neat appearance, free of inoperable equipment (except as will be 
made operable after repair within a reasonable time) or other junk material. 

f. Storage of vehicles in screened area shall not exceed thirty (30) days. 
g. Final site plan, subject to and addressing all zoning regulations, be subject to staff 

approval.  
 

   Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):   

 

Motion to accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission to approve the Special Use 
Permit application of Timith Payne for 902 Main Street to include the developmental standards 
for an “automotive repair service, major” contained in Section 86-505 of the Town Code. 
 

Or 
  

Motion to accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission to approve the Special Use 
Permit application of Timith Payne for 902 Main Street to include the developmental standards 
for an “automotive repair service, major” contained in Section 86-505 of the Town Code to 
include additional conditions (Please list conditions). 
 

Or  
 

Motion to deny approval of the Special Use Permit application. 
 

Or  
 

Defer a decision. 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet:   Planning Commission recommendation; SUP application packet 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC   



 

 

 
Commissioners      Town Planning Staff 

 

John Jordan, Chairman      Dan Witt 

Tim George        Cheryl Dudley 

John Woodson, Vice Chairman 

Laney Thompson 

Marvin Clements 

 

Town of Altavista Planning Commission 

510 Seventh Street, PO Box 420 

Altavista, VA 24517 

(434) 369-5001 phone (434) 369-4369 fax 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation 

 

Background 

 

At their August 7, 2017 meeting, the Planning Commission held a public hearing to 

consider a special use permit application submitted by Mr. Timith Payne to operate an 

‘automobile repair service, major’ shop at 902 Main Street.  The property is located in a 

C2- General Commercial district.  Town Code permits this requested use but only with 

the issuance of a SUP.   

 

The town code contains the following developmental standards for this use: 

Sec. 86-505. - Automobile repair services, major. 
(a) General standards: 

(1) All vehicles stored on the premises shall be placed in a storage yard fully 
screened from public view and shall be set back at least 100 feet from any 
adjoining residential district. 

(2) Body and fender repair services shall be subject to the following: 

a. The repair facilities are at least 150 feet from any adjoining residential 
district. 

b. Any spray painting takes place within a structure designed for that 
purpose and approved by the Altavista Fire and EMS Department. 

(3) Exterior display or storage of new or used automobile parts is prohibited. 

 

No one spoke for or against the proposed use.  Mr. Payne is currently licensed to operate 

an ‘automobile repair service, minor’ at this location. 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Planning Commissioners recommends to Council approval of the special use permit 

application for an ‘automobile repair service, major’ shop at 902 Main Street with the 

following conditions: 

a. The owner complies with Section 86-505 developmental standards; 

b. The owner limits the number of vehicles waiting for repairs to 7 and the 

number of vehicles ready for pick-up to 3, as shown on the site plan.   

 

























  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ New/Unfinished Business │ 

Subject Title:   │ Ordinance Discussion (Junk, Debris, Trash, etc. │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

At the August Town Council Work Session, staff discussed with Council the complications in 
dealing with nuisance issues such as junk, debris, and trash accumulations on property in Town.   
Staff is seeking direction in regard to coming up with appropriate ordinances to meet the 
objectives of Council.   At the Work Session, Council was presented two documents: one was 
from John Eller, Town Attorney; and the other was an ordinance from the Town of Dayton, 
VA.      

After discussion, Council decided to take the time to review the items presented and asked staff 
to place this item on the September Regular Meeting agenda.  At this time, staff seeks the 
Council’s thoughts and direction on this subject. 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per update and discussion.   

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Ordinances (Draft ordinance provided by Town Attorney and 
existing Ordinance from Town of Dayton, VA. 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: JJE 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 9a │ 

Attachment #:  │ 4 │ 



 An Ordinance to repeal, amend and re-ordain Section 86-32 of the Code of the 

Town of Altavista, 1968, relating to definitions. 

 Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Altavista: 

 

 1.  That Section 34-31 of the Code of the Town of Altavista, 1968, be repealed, 

amended and re-ordained as follows: 

 

Sec. 34-31.  Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 

meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 

different meaning:  

Animal means every dog or other animal or fowl owned within the boundaries of the 

town.  

Own and owner mean any person having a right of property in an animal and any 

person who keeps or harbors an animal or has it in his or her care, or who acts as its 

custodian, and any person who permits an animal to remain on or about any premises 

occupied by him or her.  

Primary enclosure means any structure used to immediately restrict an animal to a 

limited amount of space, such as a room, pen, cage, compartment or hutch.  For tethered 

animals, the term includes the shelter and the area within reach of the tether. 

Public nuisance means:  

(1) Every activity or condition that endangers life or health, obstructs the reasonable 

and comfortable use of property, gives offense to the senses so as to cause a 

positive and material disturbance or annoyance in the use or occupation of 

property.  

(2) Any animal that: 

a. Molests passersby or passing vehicles or interferes with traffic; 

b. Attacks other animals; 

c. Trespasses on school grounds and interferes with school activities; 

d. Habitually turns over garbage cans of any person other than the owner or 

custodian thereof;  

e. Damages private or public property; or 

f. By loud, frequent or habitual crying, barking, howling or other noise causes 

disturbance of the peace and quiet of any person or neighborhood.  

(3) Any aggregation of animals creating a foul odor. 



 

 

 

 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage by the Town 

Council of the Town of Altavista. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
14/altavista/O-34-31 Definitions 



An Ordinance to add a new Section 34-31.1 to the Code of the Town of Altavista, 

1968, relating to illustrative enumeration. 

Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Altavista: 

1.  That a new Section 34-31.1 be added to the Code of the Town of Altavista, 1968, 

as follows: 

 

Sec. 34-31.1.  Illustrative enumeration. 

The maintaining, using, placing, depositing, leaving or permitting to be or remain on 

any public or private property of any of the following items, conditions or actions are hereby 

declared to be and constitute a nuisance; provided, however, this enumeration shall not be 

deemed or construed to be conclusive, limiting or restrictive: 

A. Noxious weeds and other rank vegetation, including such growth between the 

property line and the street curbline, and overgrown vegetation. 

B. Accumulation of rubbish, trash, refuse, junk and other abandoned materials, 

metals, lumber or other things. 

C. Any condition which provides harborage for rats, mice, snakes and other 

vermin, including overgrown vegetation. 

D. Any building or other structure which is in such a dilapidated condition that it 

is unfit for human habitation, or kept in such an unsanitary condition that it is a menace to 

the health of people residing in the vicinity thereof, is open and/or unsecured from entry, or 

presents a fire hazard to the building itself and/or to other properties in the vicinity where it is 

located. 

E. All obnoxious odors and stenches, as well as the conditions, substances or 

other causes which give rise to the emission or generation of such odors and stenches. 

F. The carcasses of animals or fowl not disposed of immediately after the death 

of such animal or fowl. 

G. The pollution of any public well or cistern, stream, lake, canal or body of 

water by sewage, dead animals, creamery, industrial wastes or other substances. 

H. Any building, structure or other place or location where any activity which is 

in violation of local, state or federal law is conducted, performed or maintained. 

I. Any accumulation of stagnant water permitted or maintained on any lot or 

piece of ground. 

J. Emission of dense smoke and/or noxious fumes, for a continuing period in 

excess of 15 minutes. 

 

 

2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 
 

14/altavista/o-add-34-31 1 Illustrative enumeration 



An Ordinance to add a new Section 34-31.2 to the Code of the Town of Altavista, 

1968, relating to nuisances prohibited. 

Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Altavista: 

1.  That a new Section 34-31.2 be added to the Code of the Town of Altavista, 1968, 

as follows: 

 

Sec. 34-31.2  Nuisances Prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to cause, permit, maintain or allow the creation 

or maintenance of a nuisance. 

 

 

 

2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
14/altavista/o-add-34-31 2 Nuisances Prohibited 

 



An Ordinance to add a new Section 34-31.3 to the Code of the Town of Altavista, 

1968, relating to animal enclosures to be kept clean. 

Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Altavista: 

1.  That a new Section 34-31.3 be added to the Code of the Town of Altavista, 1968, 

as follows: 

 

Sec. 34-31.3  Animal enclosures to be kept clean. 

The owner of any animal kept in a primary enclosure (as defined in Section 34-31) 

in the Town shall keep that enclosure properly cleaned meaning that carcasses, debris, 

food waste and excrement are removed from the primary enclosure with sufficient 

frequency to minimize the animals' contact with such contaminants; the primary 

enclosure is sanitized with sufficient frequency to minimize odors and the hazards of 

disease; and the primary enclosure is cleaned so as to prevent the animals confined 

therein from being directly or indirectly sprayed with the stream of water, or directly or 

indirectly exposed to hazardous chemicals or disinfectants.  Failure to do so shall 

constitute a violation of this ordinance and shall be subject to abatement as a public 

nuisance. 

 

 

 

2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
14/altavista/o-add-34-31 3 Animal enclosures to be kept clean 

 



 Z:\Gen2\00001 Dayton\1.0.1 Dayton General\1.0.1 Charter and Town Policies\Nuisance Order Update.docx;JJH/JBB/adp;9-7-2016 
 

1 

AN ORDINANCE REGARDING THE REMOVAL  
AND ABATEMENT OF NUISANCES 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Dayton has an interest in the safety, health, and welfare of the 
town;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Virginia Code Sections 15.2-1115 and 15.2-900 et seq., the 
Town of Dayton is authorized to compel the abatement or removal of all nuisances; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Dayton seeks to set out with particularity which conditions 
constitute a nuisance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of Dayton that the 
Code of Ordinances is amended by repealing Title 1, Part 4, Sections 1-53 and 1-53.1 and 
repealing and reenacting Title 1, Part 4, Section 1-48 as follows: 

 
Part 4 

Nuisances 

§ 1-48 Abatement or Removal of Nuisances 

(a) The term “nuisance” is defined herein as the doing of any act, omission to perform any 
duty, or the permitting of any condition or thing to exist that endangers life or health, 
obstructs or interferes with the reasonable or comfortable use of property, or tends to 
depreciate the value of the property of others. Whenever the term nuisance is used in this 
Part, it shall be deemed to mean a public nuisance. 

(b) The Town Council, acting either as a body or through the Town Superintendent or other 
delegated officer, may compel the abatement or removal of all nuisances.  

(c) The following activities or conditions are hereby declared to be nuisances. This 
enumeration shall not be construed to be limiting or restrictive, and is in addition to other 
acts and conditions which are nuisances, including those acts and conditions which are 
defined as nuisances in other portions of this Code or state law.  

(1) Dangerous structures. All dwellings, accessory structures, or other structures of 
whatever character which are unsafe, dangerous, unhealthy, or injurious to the 
public. Examples of dangerous structures include, but are not limited to, structures 
with exposed or faulty electrical wiring, broken windows, visible rotting or 
molding wood or other materials, and structures which are likely to collapse or 
fall over. 

(2) Obstructions on streets or sidewalks. All obstructions on any street or sidewalk, 
including but not limited to snow, plant matter, metal, lumber, timber, refuse, 
trash, furniture, mattresses, lawn equipment, tools, motor vehicles, or tires. 



 Z:\Gen2\00001 Dayton\1.0.1 Dayton General\1.0.1 Charter and Town Policies\Nuisance Order Update.docx;JJH/JBB/adp;9-7-2016 
 

2 

(3) Conditions which pose a danger to transportation. Any condition or action which 
interferes with, obstructs or tends to obstruct, or renders dangerous passage on 
any public or private street. Such conditions shall include but not be limited to 
obstructions to line of sight and obstruction of roadside signs.  

(4) Stagnant water; discharges into public streets. All ponds or pools of stagnant 
water, and all foul or dirty water or liquid.  “Stagnant water” shall mean any water 
that is absent of flow or filtration by natural or mechanical means.  Stagnant water 
discharged into any public place or property is also a nuisance. 

(5) Septic tanks, privies, etc. All septic tanks, privies, cesspools and privy vaults of a 
type prohibited by state law or by rules and regulations promulgated by authority 
of state law, or which are maintained in any manner contrary to state law or rules 
and regulations promulgated by authority of state law or which otherwise 
constitute a menace to the health of, or are offensive to, persons in the 
neighborhood thereof. 

(6) Rats and other vermin. Any condition which provides harborage for rats, mice, 
snakes, and other vermin. 

(7) Grass, weeds, and plants. Grass, weeds, brush, or other plants which have reached 
a stage of growth so as to provide cover or harborage or potential cover or 
harborage for rats or vermin, or to cause a blighting problem, or adversely affect 
the public health and safety. Grass and weeds are further subject to the provisions 
of 1-48.1. 

(8) Vacant buildings. Any vacant or abandoned buildings that are not sealed so as to 
prevent the entry of persons or rats and other vermin. 

(9) Trash, garbage, refuse, and other substances. Outside storage on any property of 
junk, trash, rubbish, garbage, refuse, litter, waste materials, tires, motor vehicle 
parts, wheels, metal scraps, plumbing fixtures, broken appliances or machines, 
and other objects or substances which might constitute a fire hazard or endanger 
the public health or safety. Trash or garbage which is placed within a trash can or 
bin shall not be deemed to be stored outside.   

(10) Outside storage of abandoned or unused objects. Outside storage on a Residential 
Property of any offensive, unwholesome, unsanitary, or unhealthy item or 
substance, including but not limited to abandoned, unused, or discarded objects 
such as household furniture, appliances, equipment, mattresses, tools, lumber, 
building materials, and other objects that may cause a blighting problem. For the 
purpose of this subsection, the term “Residential Property” shall mean a property 
zoned R-1, R-2, or R-3, or a property zoned A-1 or A-2 on which the principal 
use is a residence. Nothing contained herein shall prohibit storage of materials 
used in conjunction with a construction project for which a building permit has 
been issued and which, in the opinion of the Town Superintendent, is being 
diligently pursued. 



 Z:\Gen2\00001 Dayton\1.0.1 Dayton General\1.0.1 Charter and Town Policies\Nuisance Order Update.docx;JJH/JBB/adp;9-7-2016 
 

3 

(11) Artificial light. Artificial light which creates an unreasonable burden on adjoining 
property. 

(12) Dangerous grades. Any portion of a lot adjacent to a street or alley where the 
difference in the level between the lot and the street or alley constitutes a danger 
to life or limb, and which is not fenced so as to prevent harm.   

(d) Whenever a nuisance is found to exist within the town, the Town Superintendent or other 
delegated officer shall provide written notice to the owner or occupants of the property on 
which the nuisance exists. Mailing of the notice to the owner or occupant at the address 
upon which the nuisance is occurring or the address of the owner according to the real 
property records of the town shall constitute compliance with the requirements of this 
ordinance. The written notice shall state: 

(1) The location of the nuisance; 

(2) A description of what constitutes the nuisance; 

(3) A statement of acts necessary to abate or remove the nuisance; 

(4) A deadline reasonable under the circumstances by which the nuisance shall be 
abated or removed; and 

(5) A statement that if the nuisance is not abated or removed by the deadline, the 
town may abate or remove the nuisance, charging the cost thereof to such owner 
or occupant and collecting such costs in the same manner as the real estate tax.  

(e) If a nuisance has not been abated or removed by the deadline as set forth in the written 
notice, or if in the opinion of the Town Superintendent or other delegated officer that the 
nuisance constitutes an imminent, substantial, or compelling threat to the public health or 
safety, the town may abate or remove the nuisance without providing written notice. The 
town may charge the cost of any abatement or removal of a nuisance to the owner, 
occupant, or both. The costs shall be collected in the same manner as the local real estate 
tax. Enforcement of this Section shall not exclude the town’s right to proceed under other 
civil remedies. 

(f) The owner or occupant of the property on which the nuisance exists may request a 
hearing by submitting a written request to the Town Superintendent or other delegated 
officer at least 48 hours before the deadline for abatement or removal of the nuisance. 
The Town Superintendent or other delegated officer shall promptly hold a hearing and 
provide notice of such hearing to the owner or occupants of the property on which the 
nuisance exists. If, after considering the evidence, the Town Superintendent or other 
delegated officer finds by a preponderance of the evidence that the nuisance does not 
exist, he or she may dismiss the notice.   

(g) The maintenance of nuisances is unlawful. Each business day a nuisance continues after 
the date set by the Town Superintendent for its abatement constitutes a separate offense 
or violation. In addition to liability for the town’s costs of abatement, persons who fail to 



 Z:\Gen2\00001 Dayton\1.0.1 Dayton General\1.0.1 Charter and Town Policies\Nuisance Order Update.docx;JJH/JBB/adp;9-7-2016 
 

4 

comply with a notice issued pursuant to this Section requiring them to abate a nuisance 
shall be subject to civil penalties as follows: 

(1) $50 for the first violation or violations arising from the same set of operative 
facts; or 

(2) $200 for subsequent violations not arising from the same set of operative facts 
within 12 months of a first violation. 

In no event shall a series of specified violations arising from the same set of operative 
facts result in civil penalties that exceed a total of $3,000 in a twelve-month period. 

 

Adopted:  October 10, 2016 

 

             NAME  AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Charles T. Long, Mayor     
Laura J. Daily     
Jeffrey S. Daly     
Steven J. Dean     
Josh O. Lyons     
Shelley P. Newman     
Tara R. Worthy     

 

CERTIFICATE 

  The undersigned Mayor and Clerk of the Town Council of the Town of Dayton, Virginia 
hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance entitled An 
Ordinance Regarding the Removal and Abatement of Nuisances adopted by the Town Council at 
a meeting held on October 10, 2016.  A record of the roll-call vote by the Town Council is as 
follows: 

Date:  October 10, 2016 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________                    ______________________________         
                    Clerk, Town Council of the         Mayor, Town of Dayton, Virginia 
                    Town of Dayton, Virginia 

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ New/Unfinished Business │ 

Subject Title:   │ Planning Commission Request │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on a Special Use Permit 
application for 1019 9th Street on Tuesday, September 5, 2017.  The application requests 
consideration of a “Non-profit facility” at the address indicated, which is in the R-2 (Medium 
Density Residential District). 

Staff seeks Council’s approval to schedule a public hearing on this application to consider public 
input and the Planning Commission’ recommendation on Tuesday, October 10, 2017 at 7:00 
p.m. 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Authorize staff to schedule the public hearing as 
outlined.   

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   NO 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?   

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 9b │ 

Attachment #:  │ 5 │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ New/Unfinished Business │ 

Subject Title:   │ WWTP Clarifier Replacement Project (CIP) Update │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

Tom Fore, Director of Utilities and Steve Bond, WWTP Manager, are moving forward with the 
WWTP Clarifier Project that is included in the FY2018 CIP and Budget.   At this time, staff is 
submitting the information in regard to the proposals submitted for the design phase of the 
work, the costs are listed below: 

Hurt & Proffitt: $23,000 

Peed & Bortz:  $25,500 

Woodard & Curran: $35,500 

Based on the proposals, staff recommends authorizing Hurt & Proffitt to proceed with the 
design work associated with the project.  This proposal also includes the Bidding Phase, 
Construction Phase Service and Final Inspection.   

After the design and bidding are complete, staff will bring back a recommendation for the 
construction bid award.   The FY2018 Budget appropriates $250,000 towards this project, the 
item is listed on pages 166 – 167 of your Budget/CIP document. 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Approve proposal submitted by Hurt & Proffitt and 
authorize staff to execute the proposal/contract for said services.   

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   NO 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?   

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  TWF 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

 Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC    

Agenda Item #:   │ 9c │ 

Attachment #:  │ 6 │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ New/Unfinished Business │ 

Subject Title:   │ Property Maintenance Enforcement funds – No Interest Loan program │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

At the August Town Council Work Session, staff discussed addressing blighted and nuisance 
type properties with Council.  Staff has moved forward with working with property owners to 
rectify the issues related to several properties in town.  It was also mentioned that funds have 
been allocated in the FY2018 Budget in the amount of $5,000 to provide No Interest Loans to pay 
for the cost of demolition of any such structure.  The funds are repaid to the Town.  Due to 
increased cost of demolition, staff would seek to increase the appropriated amount by an 
additional $5,000. 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per discussion.   

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   NO 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?   

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

 Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC    

Agenda Item #:   │ 9d │ 

Attachment #:  │ 7 │ 



  

Strategic Planning Retreat 
 

 Retreat was held on Wednesday, August 30th at the Altavista Train Station with all Council 
Members in attendance.   

 Mr. Payne has provided a draft report that has been distributed to Council. 
 

Staunton River RIFA 
 

 Staff continuing to work with other jurisdictions in regard to creation of the Staunton River 
Regional Industrial Facility Authority. 

 Staff working with legal counsel in regard to the document associated with formation of the 
RIFA. 

 Staff working with Peed & Bortz on the Utility Assessment for this project.   Report will be 
presented to Town Council at their October Work Session. 

 
Campbell Avenue Drainage Project 
 

 Bid award recommendation begin considered at September Town Council meeting. 
 
Rt. 43 Gateway Project (Streetscape/Utilities) 
 

 Meeting held with VDOT and Hurt & Proffitt to go over the project. 
 Staff evaluating funding options for the Utility portion of the project. 
 Staff considering the need to apply for additional funds through the VDOT “TAP” process. 

 
English Park  
 

 Railroad deed being forwarded to Town. 
 RFP for Master Planning (Park and Trails):  Three (3) proposals received; Interviews were on 

Monday, September 11th. 
 
Utility Projects 

 
 Facility Assessment and Improvement Plan (FAIP) 

o Presentation by Woodard & Curran is scheduled for the Town Council Work Session 
on September 26th. 

 Springs Fluoride Improvement Project – Ongoing 
 Abbott meter and vault – Working with staff to build vault. 
 Right of Way Clearing -  working with contractor on removal of trees on Clarion Tank lot and 

 continuing annual clearing of right of ways/easements. 

 
Town Manager’s Report – For Month of August 2017 
 



   TOWN OF ALTAVISTA 
MEAL TAX COLLECTIONS 

  

     

         

   Month Collections     

   Jul-15 $60,786.00     

   Aug-15 $61,309.00     

   Sep-15 $61,560.00     

   Oct-15 $63,460.00     

   Nov-15 $55,798.00     

   Dec-15 $61,928.00     

   Jan-16 $51,250.00     

   Feb-16 $57,390.00     

   Mar-16 $64,020.00     

   Apr-16 $61,664.00     

   May-16 $62,702.00     

   Jun-16 $64,356.00     

   Jul-16 $77,934.00     

   Aug-16 $79,415.00     

   Sep-16 $78,369.00     

   Oct-16 $77,843.00     

   Nov-16 $76,293.74     

   Dec-16 $80,126.95     

   Jan-17 $71,669.47     

   Feb-17 $74,876.88     

   Mar-17 $82,040.84     

   Apr-17 $86,217.44     

   May-17 $84,409.32     

   Jun-17 $82,323.07     

   Jul-17 $78,740.00     

         
 

          

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

$40,000.00

$45,000.00

$50,000.00

$55,000.00

$60,000.00

$65,000.00

$70,000.00

$75,000.00

$80,000.00

$85,000.00

$90,000.00

Ju
l-

1
5

A
u

g-
1

5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

Fe
b

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n

-1
7

Ju
l-

1
7

Meals Tax Collections



Monthly Report to Council  
 

 

Date:  September 12, 2017 

 

To:   Town Council  

 

From:  Dan Witt, Assistant Town Manager 

 

Re:  August 2017 Reporting  

 

1. Zoning/Code Related Matters: August Permits  

 

DATE PERMIT # APPLICANT NAME & ADDRESS REASON FOR PERMIT  
No zoning permits issued in August 

 

 Multiple grass notices sent out.  

 Met with Mr. Hall at B&D and verified all vehicles are in compliance so staff issued a 

zoning compliance certification to Motor Vehicle Dealer Board.  Mr. Hall has 30 days 

to apply to have his licenses reinstated, September 6, 2017. 

 Staff cited 1212 Main Street, B&D Auto, for accumulation of trash and debris.  While 

progress has been made there is still more work to be done on the site.  

 Staff sent certified notices to property owners presented to Town Council and identified 

as possible public nuisances.  These include 301 Hughes Street, 1028& 1030 7th Street, 

1286 Lynch Road, and 900 Park Street.  

 

2. Site Plans Reviewed and/or Approved:  

 Nothing   

 

3. Planning Commission (PC) Related: 

 Prepared packet for September meeting and public hearing for SUP application for 

‘nonprofit’ use at 1019 9th Street, Claire Parker Foundation.  

 A recommendation provided to Town Council for ‘major auto repair’ SUP application 

at 902 Main Street. Ads prepared and notices sent for TC public hearing. 

 A recommendation provided to Town Council for ‘nonprofit’ with request to advertise 

for a public hearing at the October meeting.       

 

4. AOT Related 

 Nothing noted.  

 

5. ACTS Related 

 Validated daily ridership and revenue for bus system (August) - see bus report.   

 Daily riders tallied. 

 Submitted request and received an RTAP grant payment for CTAV training.     

    
6. Projects and Administrative Related: 



 Updated GIC.     

 Certified July bank statements.  

 Issued 17 urban archery permits for upcoming season.  

 Staff received 3 proposals for the advertised RFP for park and trails master plans with 

scheduled interviews for September 11.   

          

 Route 43 Streetscape and Utility Project 
o Contract with Hurt & Proffitt executed. 

o Surveying of the site has begun.  

o Staffed a pre-design meeting with VDOT and engineers.   

o VDOT has requested adding two new components to the FY2018 TAP grant 

application; a crosswalk at Route 43 and correcting the sidewalk on Main 

Street adjacent to the Henderson Building.  Hurt & Proffitt have provided an 

estimated cost for these changes at $400-450K.  Staff believes it would be 

better to wait for the next 2-year cycle to include these.    

o Staff met with Region 2000 staff to kick-off the TAP grant application 

process.           

 Canoe Launch Site 

o Design is completed. 

o Campbell County is reviewing the drawings and G&N Inc. is waiting 

for the response.  

o Once approved the project will be ready to bid. 

o Staff has scheduled a conference call with Synthia, DCR, on October 

4th to discuss the RTP grant.  

 Personnel Policy Manual  

o Staff continued reviewing chapters from the draft policy manual.   

 VDOT Main Street Bridge Lighting  
o Staff met with Hurt & Proffitt engineers and they will be reviewing the 

AECOM budget and assisting staff with a budget for the VDOT TAP 

grant.  Staff will be submitting a single, joint TAP application for all 

lighting, including the Town of Hurt entrance to the bridge.  HDLA 

will be working with the TOH on their resolution and public meeting.  

o Staff met with Region 2000 staff to kick-off the TAP grant application 

process for this project.      

 

 



 

  
To: Town Council 
From: Dennis Jarvis, II, Director of Economic Development 
Cc: J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 
RE: August 2017 Economic Development Update 
 
 

Networking:   

 Director met with economic development officials from Pittsylvania County, City of Danville. 

 Director met with the LRBA RED Team.  

 Director met with VEDP CEO Steven Moret.  

 Director met with USDA. 

Existing Business and Retention  

 Director met with officials from VTI.  

 Director met officials Rage Plastics.  

 Director met with officials from PCM.  

 Director met with applicant for RLF program.  

  

Marketing  

 Director completed ad for VA Craft Beer magazine.  

 Director working on revising the EDA website.  

 Director developing RFP for new EDA strategic plan and cluster analysis.   

Develop Products 

 Final draft of RIFA articles of incorporation delivered to the office.  

 

  













 

ALTAVISTA COMMUNIT TRANSIT SYSTEM (ACTS) 

Annual Ridership Tally FY2013—FY2018 

 

 

 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Yearly Total

FY2011 391 590 481 495 551 1,617 4,125

FY2012 1,364 1,499 1,021 805 849 1,076 813 875 983 872 1,028 2,026 13,211

FY2013 1,850 1,962 1,618 1,176 1,083 979 939 1,015 968 1,152 1,362 2,272 16,376

FY2014 1,956 2,231 1,705 1,416 1,440 1,304 1,318 1,253 1,259 1,527 1,486 3,335 20,230

FY2015 3,051       2,575      2,502      1,790      1,587      1,828      1,644      1,591      1,696      1,596       1,444       3,145       24,449        

FY2016 2,538       2,242      2,036      1,771      1,597      1,704      1,281      1,500      1,555      1,492       1,235       2,897       21,848        

FY2017 1,832 2,213 2,184 1,942 2,075 1,824 1,334 1,609 1,616 1,555 1,622 2,953 22,759        

FY2018 1,722 1,915 3,637          



 

◄ Aug 2017 September  2017 Oct 2017 ► 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

     1  
 

2  
 

3  
 

4  
Labor Day 
Town Offices Closed 
No ACTS Bus 

5  
Planning Commission  
5:00 PM 

6  
 

7  
 

8  
 

9  
 

10  
Grandparent’s Day 

11  
 

12  
Council Meeting  
7:00 PM 

13  
 

14  
Altavista on Track 
10-Year Anniversary 
5:30 to 7:00 p.m. 

15  
 

16  
 

17  
 

18  
 

19  
 

20  
 

21  
 

22  
 

23  
 

24  
 

25  
 

26  
EDA Meeting 8:15AM 
Town Hall 
Council Work Session 
5:00 PM 
 

27  
 

28  
 

29  
 

30  
 

 

http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/August-2017
http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/October-2017


◄ Sep 2017 October  2017 Nov 2017 ► 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1  
 

2  
Planning Commission  
5:00 PM 

3  
 

4  
 

5  
 

6  
 

7  
 

8  
 

9  
Columbus Day 

10  
Council Meeting  
7:00 PM 

11  
 

12  
 

13  
 

14  
 

15  
 

16  
Boss’s Day 

17  
 

18  
 

19  
 

20  
 

21  
 

22  
 

23  
 

24  
EDA Meeting 8:15AM 
Town Hall 
Council Work Session 
5:00 PM 
Avoca Volunteer Appreciation 
Dinner 

25  
 

26  
 

27  
 

28  
 

29  
 

30  
 

31  
Townwide Trick or 
Treat 
Halloween 

Notes: 

 

http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/September-2017
http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/November-2017

	01 September TC Regular Agenda
	03 CA_Minutes_TCAF
	03a Council Minutes August 8,  2017
	03b Council Work Session August 22, 2017
	04 CA_Financial Reports_TCAF
	04a Check Register August 2017
	04b August 2017_Revenue_Expenditure Report
	04c August 2017_Reserve Balance_Investment Report
	05 CA_Delinquent Tax List_TCAF
	05a FY 2018 Submission to Town Council of Delinquent Taxpayers_August 2017
	06 CA_R2K Hazard Mitigation Plan Update_TCAF
	07 CA_Bid Award Charlotte Ave and 7th St. Sidewalk_TCAF
	07a Bid recommendation (002)
	08 CA_New Prospect Baptist Church Request English Park_TCAF
	09 Public Hearing_SUP_902 Main Street_Payne_TCAF
	09a Planning Commission Recomendation to TC  SUP 902 Main Street
	09b SUP Major Auto 902 Main St.
	10 Ordinance Discussion Trash, Junk, etc._TCAF
	10a O-34-31 Definitions
	10b o-add-34-31 1 Illustrative enumeration
	10c o-add-34-31 2 Nuisances Prohibited
	10d o-add-34-31 3 Animal enclosures to be kept clean
	10e Dayton Updated-Nuisance-Ordinance-8.17
	11 NUB_Planning Commission Update_TCAF
	12 CIP_Clarifier Project_Design Award_TCAF
	13 No Interest Loans_Demo_Funds Request_TCAF
	14 Town Managers Report
	15 Meals Tax July
	15a Community Development Council Report September 12, 2017
	15b ED_August 2017
	15c Public Works Monthly
	15d Utilities Monthly
	15e ALTAVISTA COMMUNIT TRANSIT SYSTEM
	16 September - October 2017 Calendars

